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Problem Set # 11
Removal

Yeazell, pp. 212-13

Which of the following cases would be removable?

Q.1.  Paul sues Danielle for defamation in state court; Danielle believes the statement she published is protected under the First Amendment.

A. Rules:  Under 28 U.S.C. §1441(a) “any civil action brought in a State court of which the district courts of the Untied States have original jurisdiction, may be removed by the defendant . . .”.  Under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 district courts have original jurisdiction of “civil actions arising under the Constitution, laws, or treaties of the United States”, i.e. federal question jurisdiction.  Under the judicially created “well-pleaded complaint rule” a federal question must appear on the face of the complaint, and not as a defense to the claim.  In other words the elements of plaintiff claim must rest in federal law.
Application:   Paul’s suit for defamation is a state claim governed by state tort law.  The potential federal question, protection under the First Amendment arises only as a defense.
Conclusion:  Not removable.
Q.2.  Paul sues Danielle in state court, alleging violation of Paul’s rights under the equal protection clause of the U.S. Constitution.

A. Rules:  See answer to question #1.  In addition, another specific grant of jurisdiction to the federal district courts is found in 28 U.S.C. §1343(3), which grants jurisdiction over suits to “redress the deprivation . . . of any right . . . secured by the Constitution.”
Application:  Paul’s lawsuit alleges a violation of plaintiff’s equal protection rights under the Constitution, so it arises under federal law 28 U.S.C. §1343(3).
Conclusion:  Removable

Q.3.  Paul, a citizen of Florida, sues Danielle, a citizen of New Jersey, on a personal injury claim, in a Florida state court, seeking $100,000 in damages.

A. Rule:  Under 28 U.S.C. §1441(a) “Except as otherwise expressly provided . . . any civil action brought in a State court of which the district courts of the Untied States have original jurisdiction, may be removed by the defendant . . .”.  Under 28 U.S.C. §1332, the federal district courts have diversity jurisdiction where the amount in controversy, exclusive of costs and interest exceeds $75,000 and the action is between citizens of different states.  
Application:  The amount in controversy ($100,000) exceeds $75,000 and the parties are citizens of different states and no defendant is a resident of a state in which the suit was brought.
Conclusion:  Removable.  
Q.4.  Paul, a citizen of Florida, sues Danielle, a citizen of New Jersey, on a personal injury claim in New Jersey state court, seeking $100,000 in damages.

A. Rules:  Under 28 U.S.C. §1441(a) “Except as otherwise expressly provided . . . any civil action brought in a State court of which the district courts of the Untied States have original jurisdiction, may be removed by the defendant . . .”.  Under 28 U.S.C. §1332, the federal district courts have diversity jurisdiction where the amount in controversy, exclusive of costs and interest exceeds $75,000 and the action is between citizens of different states.  But under §1441(b) “[a]ny other action [not a federal question case] shall be removable only if none of the . . . defendants is a citizen of the State in which such action is brought [often referred to as the ‘forum state’].”
Application:  The amount in controversy ($100,000) exceeds $75,000 and the parties are citizens of different states.  But Danielle is a citizen of New Jersey, the forum state, and home state defendant can’t remove under §1441(b).
Conclusion:  Not removable.

Q5..  The facts are as in Problem 4 (1-d in book, p. 212-213), except that Paul adds a claim that Danielle has violated his federal civil rights.
A. Rules:  Under 28 U.S.C. §1441(a) “any civil action brought in a State court of which the district courts of the Untied States have original jurisdiction, may be removed by the defendant . . .”.  Under 28 U.S.C. § 1331 district courts have original jurisdiction of “civil actions arising under the Constitution, laws, or treaties of the United States”, i.e. federal question jurisdiction.  Under §1441(c) “[w]whenever a separate and independent claim within [federal question] jurisdiction . . . is joined with one or more otherwise non-removable claims . . ., the entire case may be removed . . .”
Application:  This case now involves a federal civil rights claim that gives rise to federal question jurisdiction.  By itself the state law claim would not be removable (see question 4), but now it comes along under §1441(c).
Conclusion:  Removable.

Q.6.  Paul, a citizen of Florida, sue Danielle, a citizen of New Jersey, and Eleanor, a citizen of New York, on a personal injury claim in New York state court, seeking $100,000 in damages.
A. Rules:  See question 4.
Application:  As in question 4, the amount in controversy ($100,000) exceeds $75,000 and the parties are citizens of different states.  But one of the defendants, Eleanor, is a citizen of New York, the forum state, and removal is available only if none of the defendants is a citizen of the forum state.
Conclusion:  Not removable.

Q.7.  Paul, a citizen of California, sues Danielle, a citizen of California, for infringement of copyright.  Paul brings the suit in California state courts.  Danielle seeks to remove.  Until 1988 there was an unexpected result: Although the federal courts have exclusive jurisdiction over copyright claims, Danielle could not remove- because the California courts never had jurisdiction.  There was no validly pending “case” that could be removed to federal court.  In 1988 Congress amended § 1441, adding what is now section (f).  What result in the case just posed?  

A. Rules:  Under 28 U.S.C. §1338 the federal courts have exclusive jurisdiction in copyright cases. Under §1441(f) a court “to which a civil action is removed . . . is not precluded from hearing and determining any claim because the State court . . . did not have jurisdiction over the claim. Application:  This case involves a copyright claim.
Conclusion:  Removable, because the federal district courts would have original jurisdiction.

The procedure for removal is set forth in 28 U.S.C. § 1446; that for challenging removal in § 1447.  Read these statutes and apply them to the following questions.

Q.8.  Plaintiff, a citizen of Pennsylvania, files a complaint in Pennsylvania state court naming Danielle as defendant and seeking $100,000 in damages.  Danielle is a citizen of Georgia.  If Danielle wishes to remove, what must her notice of removal say?

A. Rules:  Under §1446(a) notice of removal must include “short and plain statement of grounds for removal.”  
Application:  Here, removal is based on diversity jurisdiction, so the notice of removal must include the citizenship of parties and the amount in controversy, which provide the statutory basis for jurisdiction under §1332.

Q.9.  If in her notice of removal Danielle falsely states that she is a citizen of Georgia, what risks does she run?

A. Rules:  Under 28 U.S.C. §1447(c) a district court may remand a case back to the state court at any time if it appears that the district court lacks subject matter jurisdiction.  If it does so, the court may require “payment of just costs and any actual expenses, including attorney’s fees, incurred as a result of the removal.”  In addition, under Rule 11(b)(3) and (c) a court may impose sanctions on a party whose factual contentions lack evidentiary support.
Application:  Danielle has falsely stated that she is a citizen of Georgia.  If she is actually a citizen of Pennsylvania, diversity is lacking and the court can remand for lack of s.m.j. and impose sanctions under §1447(c) and Rule 11(c). 

Q.10.  Danielle files her notice of removal two months after being served with the state court complaint.  Assuming that the conditions for diversity exist, can she remove?

A. Rules:  Under §1446(b) defendant has 30 days from receipt of initial pleading to file the notice of removal, except where facts on which removal would be available arise later.  In that case, defendant has 30 days from the appearance of those facts.
Application:  Danielle filed her removal petition two months after being served with the state court complaint.
Conclusion:  Not removable.  Danielle has missed the deadline.

Q.11.  Same as in problem 1 (in book, 1a, pp. 212), except that plaintiff’s initial complaint seeks only $10,000 in damages.  Six months later, after some discovery, plaintiff amends his state complaint to add an additional cause of action, so he now seeks $85,000 in damages.  May Danielle now remove?

A. Rule:  See above.  Under §1446(b) an amended pleading is a “paper from which it may first be ascertained that the case is one which . . . has become removable . . .”
Application:  Here, Danielle can file her notice of removal within 30 days from the filing of the amended complaint that gives rise to an amount in controversy sufficient to establish diversity jurisdiction.
Conclusion: Removable

Q.12.  Same problem as in problem 4 (in book 1(d), p. 212) except the damage prayer is well below the jurisdictional amount.  Danielle seeks to remove, claiming that if she is liable which she denies, the damages are far more than the jurisdictional amount.  May she remove?

A. Rules:  The allegations of the pleading determine the amount in controversy, unless it appears “to a legal certainty that the claim is really for less than the jurisdictional amount”. 
Application:   Unless the complaint on its face reveals damages that exceed the jurisdictional amount, the court is unlikely to look beyond it.
Conclusion:  Probably not.  Note that filing a state court complaint with a request for damages under the federal amount in controversy limit can be a tactic to avoid removal.   See the next question for a demonstration of how powerful the tactic can be.

Q.13.  Same problem as in 4 (p. 212, 1(d) in book), except that plaintiff amends his complaint a year after the original complaint.  No removal is possible, even though the requisites of diversity jurisdiction are met.  Why?

A. Rule:  Under 28 U.S.C. §1446(b) “a case may not be removed on the basis of [diversity jurisdiction] more than 1 year after commencement of the action.”
Application:   Paul’s amended complaint comes a year after the filing of the lawsuit.
Conclusion:  No removal.
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